
 

 

Arun District Council 
Civic Centre 
Maltravers Road 
Littlehampton 
West Sussex 
BN17 5LF 
 
Tel: (01903 737500) 
Fax: (01903) 730442 
DX: 57406 Littlehampton 
Minicom: 01903 732765 
 
e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Committee Manager Carrie O'Connor (Ext 37614) 

13 February 2020 
 
PLANNING POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the Planning Policy Sub-Committee will be held in at Arun Civic Centre, 
Maltravers Road, Littlehampton, BN17 5LF on Tuesday 25 February 2020 at 6.00 pm 
and you are requested to attend. 
 
 
Members:  Councillors Mrs Yeates (Chairman), Jones (Vice-Chair), Bower, Charles, 

Mrs Daniells, Dixon, Elkins, Huntley, Lury, Northeast, Oppler, 
Mrs Pendleton, Ms Thurston and Mrs Worne 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members and Officers are reminded to make any declarations 
of pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interests that they 
may have in relation to items on this agenda and are 
reminded that they should re-declare their interest before 
consideration of the item or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 
 
Members and officers should make their declaration by 
stating: 

a) the item they have the interest in 
b) whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial 
c) the nature of the interest 

 

 

3. MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 10) 

 To agree as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held 
on 17 December 2019. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 

4. ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA WHICH THE CHAIRMAN OF 
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON 
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  
 

 

5. REVOCATION OF OLDER SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
DOCUMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
GUIDANCE  

(Pages 11 - 14) 

 Following the adoption of the Open Space, Playing Pitches, 
Indoor and Built Sports Facilities Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) and the Arun Parking Standards SPD on 15 
January 2020, this report advises members on the need to 
revoke older sets of Supplementary Planning Documents and 
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) including the Open 
Space & Recreation Standards SPG and Parking Standards 
SPG adopted in 2000.  
 

 

6. CRAWLEY REGULATION 19 PUBLICATION LOCAL PLAN 
CONSULTATION  

(Pages 15 - 18) 

 The Crawley Regulation 19 publication Local Plan is being 
consulted on for soundness which covers the 15-year plan 
period 2019 - 2035. The consultation – closes on 2 March 
2020.This report briefs members on the proposed response. 
 

 

7. HOUSING EMPLOYMENT LAND AVAILABILITY 
ASSESSMENT (HELAA 2018/19  

(Pages 19 - 24) 

 This document provides the Council with a database of sites 
within the District. Each site within the database has been 
assessed to determine whether it is deliverable, developable 
or not currently developable according to the HELAA 
methodology. 
 

 

8. BROWNFIELD LAND REGISTER 2019  (Pages 25 - 30) 

 The Register is to be established in two parts (i.e. Part 1 and 
Part 2) and is to include all Brownfield sites that are suitable 
for residential development. The Register is to be updated at 
least annually. 
 

 

9. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE MASTERPLAN - COAST TO 
THE SOUTH DOWNS  

(Pages 31 - 34) 

 The Council has commissioned a Masterplan produced by 
LUC which sets out a vision for Green Infrastructure linking 
the coastline at Bognor Regis with the South Downs National 
Park at Fontwell.  The purpose of the report is to seek the 
Council’s endorsement of this Masterplan to guide future 
negotiations with landowners and developers and public 
authorities to secure its implementation. 

 



 
 

 

10. HIGH LEVEL DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES FOR THE 
BARNHAM / EASTERGATE / WESTERGATE (BEW) 
STRATEGIC PLANNING ALLOCATION  

(Pages 35 - 44) 

 This report seeks the endorsement of the Council to a series 
of high-level development principles to guide the form of the 
development at BEW.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Note :  Reports are attached for all Members of the Sub-Committee only and the press 
(excluding exempt items).  Copies of reports can be obtained on request from the 
Committee Manager. 

 
Note :   Members are reminded that if they have any detailed questions would they please 

inform the Chairman and/or relevant Director in advance of the meeting. 
 
Note : Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings - The District Council 

supports the principles of openness and transparency in its decision making and 
permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its meetings that are 
open to the public. This meeting may therefore be recorded, filmed or broadcast by 
video or audio, by third parties. Arrangements for these activities should operate in 
accordance with guidelines agreed by the Council and as available via the following 
link – Filming Policy 

https://www.arun.gov.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n12353.pdf&ver=12365


This page is intentionally left blank



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
15 

 

 
 

PLANNING POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

17 December 2019 at 6.00 pm 
 
 

 
Present: Councillors Mrs Yeates (Chairman), Jones (Vice-Chair), Bower, 

Charles, Mrs Daniells, Dixon, Elkins, Huntley, Lury, Oppler, 
Mrs Pendleton, Ms Thurston and Mrs Worne 
 
 

 Councillor Coster were also in attendance at the meeting. 
 
 

 
17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 An apology for absence had been received from Councillor Northeast. 
 
18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
  There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
19. MINUTES  
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2019 were approved by the 
Subcommittee and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
20. LOCAL PLAN OPTIONS  
 
 As a result of the changes to the administration following the local elections in 
May 2019, a series of briefings had been held for Members relating to planning matters 
and the Group Head of Planning now presented this report, particularly in light of the 
fact that the trigger for a review of the Local Plan had been reached, as set out at  
paragraph 12.1.12 of the Local Plan.  In addition, the NPPF (National Planning Policy 
Framework) confirmed that Local Plans should be reviewed every 5 years and, should 
that review result in an update, that process could be lengthy and an early review was 
therefore necessary.  Further, the report followed on from the recently agreed new 
strategic targets of the Council, one of which was a high priority to develop a new 
planning framework to improve sustainability and infrastructure and respond to climate 
change as part of a Local Plan review.   
 
 The Subcommittee was advised that there was a need to recognise that a review 
was required now and, at a minimum, the housing policies contained within the Plan 
should be reviewed as they would require updating based on the current shortfall in the 
5 year housing land supply (HLS) 
 
 The report set out options for the process, which in summary were:- 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
16 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 
 
 

Option 1 -  a commitment to an updated Plan to produce a full new Local Plan which 
would take between 3 – 5 years and would need to accommodate an additional 5 years 
to take the end date to 2036. There would be a substantial cost to this of in the region of 
£1 million. 
 
Option 2 - to revise the strategic allocations. The report set out the reasons why there 
would be no realistic prospect of extinguishing the existing allocations. The Council 
would need to demonstrate with evidence why such allocations were unsound and 
would have to be able to demonstrate that it could accommodate housing needs on 
alternative sites that had been consulted upon and was justified by evidence. However, 
all allocations would be considered as part of an updated Plan. 
 
Option 3 - to concentrate on just the development management policies within the Local 
Plan and would be a more focussed update. This would concentrate on policies that, for 
example, related to climate change, environment and design.  Whilst this could 
technically take place in isolation, it would not be possible to leave the housing policies 
as they were whilst these policies were being updated because there was a 
requirement now to review and update those policies as well. 
 
Option 4 - to concentrate on developing Supplementary Planning Documents in support 
of existing Local Plan policies.  However, it should be recognised that this option would 
not result in a set of new policies reflecting the new strategic targets. 
 
Option 5 -  to do nothing.  Officers fully recognised the situation the Council found itself 
in where it had had exceptionally high housing numbers imposed upon it and that those 
numbers were very difficult to deliver based on past performance requiring a significant 
uplift by the housing sector.  There was also the issue of incurring substantial costs, 
only to end up with a Plan that would be out of date 18 months after adoption. However, 
that was the current system for all local authorities and there were implications of not 
complying with the legal requirements. The potential implications of doing nothing would 
be that the Secretary of State could take over our plan making functions to produce a 
Plan which the Council would have to pay for. 
 

The Subcommittee heard that agreement was being sought on a course of action 
to take the process forward, with no commitment being placed on the Council at this 
stage.  At the outset of any of this work, evidence gathering would be scoped against a 
new ‘vision’ and ‘objectives’ for what the Council would be aiming to create. However, 
there would be no escaping the fact that any process would be complex and very 
difficult decisions would have to be taken around development required to 
accommodate increased housing need. Further reports to the Subcommittee would be 
presented on these matters over coming months. 
 

Members were advised that officers considered that there was an opportunity to 
produce a new Plan that would reflect the Council’s strategic targets around climate and 
infrastructure. It was felt that a combination of options 1 and 3 would provide the new 
administration with an opportunity to set new development management objectives in 
policy after evidence had been gathered and tested and consultation carried out.  

Page 2



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
17 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 

 

 
 

Initially, work could focus on updated development management policies following 
agreement by Full Council.   
 

It was anticipated that this process would have to be aligned with an update of 
the strategic elements of the Plan, which would include updated housing needs and, 
once these development management policies had been agreed, work would continue 
on the strategic policies.  On completion, the two work streams would merge to create a 
new Plan for consultation, examination and, hopefully, adoption. 

 
The Subcommittee then participated in a detailed debate, during which it was 

acknowledged that there was a very clear requirement for the Plan to be reviewed.  A 
view was expressed that what was being proposed was a sensible compromise and 
that a very serious concern that must be addressed was the fact that the house building 
target set for the District was not currently being delivered by developers and for which 
the Council was being penalised.  Several Members voiced their worry with regard to 
the housing figures and the potential for a substantial increase and discussion and 
comment was made around climate change; the coastal flood plain; and accessible 
housing. 

 
During the course of discussion, Member comment was made that every action 

must be taken to avoid losing control of the Local Plan process as it would then be 
taken over by the Secretary of State.  Any housing imposed must be located in those 
parts of the District that required improvements in terms of infrastructure.   As there was 
currently a shortfall in the housing delivery figure of 1,250, it was understood that that 
shortfall would have to be accommodated  within the Local Plan period and any 
accumulation would be added at the end – if the Plan period was then extended by five 
years the housing need would  also be increased so that too would have to be 
accommodated in addition to any shortfall. 

 
A concern was raised that the Council was not being represented at Sub regional 

level, particularly with regard to the issues around the Duty to Cooperate with 
Chichester and Worthing and that this process could help to resolve the required 
strategic infrastructure needs.  However, the Director of Place was able to give an 
assurance that that was not the case.  The Coastal West Sussex Strategic Planning 
Board was currently going through the process to assess evidence to help set out a sub 
regional position up to 2050.  Conversations were ongoing but it was too early to 
provide further information at this stage.  He advised that it was vitally important for 
Members to consider the wider strategic implications as strategic matters should be 
included in the Local Plan.  A broader perspective had to be taken and there would be a 
need to ensure that any decisions taken by the Council would not have a negative 
impact on other authorities. 

     
Members were generally happy to accept options 1 and 3 at this stage and 

acknowledged there was a lot of work to be done going forward in the future.  It was 
important to not lose control of the planning system, which could happen if steps were 
not taken to review some of the Local Plan policies. 

 

Page 3



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
18 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 
 
 

In turning to the recommendations, and following discussion, it was agreed that 
the following recommendations be amended:- 

 
i. A combination of options 1 and 3 are pursued – to be deleted as Members felt 

that this was implicit in recommendation ii. 
ii. The update of the Local Plan commences as updating the Development 

Management policies in the Local Plan so that these can be used by the 
Council in the short term, before completing an update of the full Plan.  This 
would involve gathering evidence to support update policies, formal and 
informal consultation and agreement of Full Council.  (The wording in bold 
was the change agreed by Members for the purpose of clarity.) 
 

It was formally proposed and seconded that only option 3 be pursued at this time 
but, on being put to the vote, was declared LOST. 

 
The Subcommittee then 
 

RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL – That 
 
(1) The update of the Local Plan commences as updating the 
Development Management policies in the Local Plan so that these can 
be used by the Council in the short term, before completing an update 
of the full Plan.  This would involve gathering evidence to support 
update policies, formal and informal consultation and agreement of Full 
Council; 
  
(2) The likely costs of approximately £1million and the timescales of 
this process be noted; and 
 
(3) Future reports to the Planning Policy Subcommittee will report on 
progress at relevant stages of this process and the scope of evidence. 

 
21. ARUN DESIGN GUIDE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)  
 
 Prior to presenting the report on the table, the Planning Policy Team Leader 
gave a presentation on the objectives of the Arun Design Guide Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) and what the Council would be expecting in terms of quality 
of design for development in the future.  The Council’s policies sought good quality 
design and this document would provide clarity for developers and the public as to how 
that could be achieved.  
 
 The Planning Policy Team Leader advised that the Council’s consultants had 
been involved in the production of the Design Guide which covered a comprehensive 
amount of detail in a structured way.  It was now being proposed to put the draft SPD 
out to public consultation to gather the views of all relevant parties and stakeholders; 
those responses would then be assessed and actioned as necessary and the revised 
document presented to a future meeting for consideration. 
 

Page 4



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
19 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 

 

 
 

 In consideration of this item, Members welcomed the production of the Design 
Guide and thanked officers for their work on it and hoped that it would make a positive 
contribution to improving future development in the District. 
 
 A question was asked in respect of the involvement of Members and the Parish 
Councils in the process of the development of this SPD and the Group Head of 
Planning was able to confirm that a briefing had been arranged on 3 October 2019 for 
all Members; a hard copy of the document had been provided in the Members’ Room; 
and a link in the report directed Members and the public to the website where it could 
be viewed.  Meetings had been held with a number of Parish Councils and a 
questionnaire had been sent out to all Parish Councils to ascertain their views. 
 
 A view was expressed that the consultation period was too short and should 
therefore be extended to particularly benefit the Parish Councils.  Following discussion 
it was agreed that the consultation would take place between 9 January to 21 February 
2020 (rather than 6 February 2020 as detailed in the report) and Members recognised 
that there would be a need for an additional meeting to meet the proposed timetable. 
 
 Member questions were asked with regard to infill development and its potential 
impact on the adjacent environment; and flatted development and HMOs (Houses in 
Multiple Occupation) and these were responded to at the meeting by the Planning 
Policy Team Leader. 
 
 The Subcommittee 
 

RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the proposed approach and timetable for the public consultation on 

the Consultation Draft version of the Design Guide Supplementary 
Planning Document, which will be published for public consultation 
from 9 January 2020 to 21 February 2020, be agreed; 
  

(2) the Group Head of Planning, in consultation with the Planning 
Portfolio Holder and the Chairman, be granted delegated authority 
to finalise the Design Guide SPD Consultation document for 
publication; and 

 
(3) following consultation, any responses be reported back to the 

Subcommittee to agree any further changes prior to the Design 
Guide being referred to Full Council for adoption. 

 
22. OPEN SPACE, PLAYING PITCHES AND BUILT SPORTS FACILITIES 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD) AND ARUN PARKING 
STANDARDS SPD  

 
 The Subcommittee considered this report from the Planning Policy Team Leader 
which set out the detail of representations received and proposed responses following 
the 4 week public consultation undertaken on the two proposed Supplementary 

Page 5



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
20 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 
 
 

Planning Documents (SPDs) relating to (1) Open Space, Playing Pitches and Built 
Sports Facilities and (2) Arun Parking Standards. 
 
 The Planning Team Leader advised Members that the comments raised on the 
respective SPDs did not raise material objections or issues but had requested a limited 
number of clarifications which, it was considered, would helpfully improve the 
interpretation of the SPDs.  The representations and proposed clarifications and 
wording amendments were detailed in the report for Members’ consideration. 
 
 The Subcommittee 
 

RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL – That 
 
1) subject to the minor drafting changes detailed in this report (and any 

further minor changes made by the Group Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the Chairman and Cabinet Member for Planning), 
that the Open Space, Playing Pitches and Built Sports Facilities 
Supplementary Planning Document be adopted; 

2) subject to the minor drafting changes detailed in this report (and any 
further minor changes made by the Group Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the Chairman and Cabinet Member for Planning), 
that the Arun Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document 
be adopted; 

3) as soon as reasonably practical after adoption, both SPDs, together 
with an Adoption Statement, be made available for inspection and 
published to the  Council’s website and sent to any persons who 
have requested to be notified. 

 
23. GYPSY & TRAVELLER & TRAVELLING SHOWMEN SITE ALLOCATIONS 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT (DPD)  
 
 (In the course of discussion on this matter, Councillors Elkins, Oppler and Mrs 
Pendleton declared a personal interest as members of West Sussex County Council.) 
 
 The Planning Policy Team Leader presented the detail of this report which set 
out the outcome of the Gypsy & Traveller (G&T) & Travelling Showmen Site Allocations 
Issues and Options public consultation which had been undertaken in the summer of 
2019.  It also summarised representations made and the Council’s proposed response 
and set out the next steps for preparing the G&T Site Allocations Development Plan 
Document (DPD).  Members were also advised that the timescale envisaged was 
different from that included in the Local Plan because the evidence base had been 
recalibrated to 2018 with an end period moved from 2030 to 2036.  
 
 Member comment was made in respect of:- 
 

Page 6



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
21 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 

 

 
 

 (i) ARU040 Land West of Brook Lane, south of A259 Angmering – it was felt that 
Store Property Investments view was correct as the families at that site had 
moved to the north side and so the matter should be investigated further. 

 (ii) Aldingbourne Farm Shop – a request was made that this matter should be 
dealt with as a matter of urgency. 

 
 The Subcommittee 
 

RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the consultation response to the Gypsy & Traveller and Traveller 

Showmen Issues and Options consultation be noted; and 
  

(2) following further work to resolve objections, a Regulation 18 Draft 
Gypsy & Traveller and Traveller Showmen Site Allocations 
Development Plan Document be prepared for consultation in the 
late Spring 2020. 

  
24. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) UPDATE  
 
 The Planning Policy Team Leader presented this report which provided an 
update on the Arun Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Examination which took place 
on 18 October 2019; a summary of the Examiner’s Report which was received on 3 
December 2019; and further details regarding the CIL charging process.  He advised 
the Subcommittee that the Charging Schedule had the potential to generate £30million 
going forward in future years and was therefore an important document.  The receipts 
from CIL would be used to deliver infrastructure projects to support planned 
development 
 
 Following examination, the draft Charging Schedule had been found “fit for 
purpose” subject to two modifications which had been duly incorporated in the 
document.  It was therefore being recommended for approval by Full Council as the 
basis for collecting a CIL levy and as sufficient evidence had been provided, the rates 
would not undermine the deliverability of the Local Plan.  
 
 In turning to consideration of the item, the Principal Planner was commended for 
her due diligence in achieving finalisation of the Arun CIL Charging Schedule. 
 
 Member comment was made highlighting 4 specific issues that the Examiner had 
made further suggestions/informal recommendations on.  These related to:- 
 

a. Applications in the pipeline when the Charging Schedule came into effect – 
officer response given was that CIL Regulations were quite clear and there was 
no leeway.  If a planning application had not been approved before the Charging 
Schedule came into effect there would still be a liability to pay a CIL charge; 

b. A review of the CIL Charging Schedule on completion of the review of the Arun 
Local Plan – officer response given was that that would happen at an appropriate 
time with consideration of the Local Plan review; 

Page 7



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
22 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 
 
 

c. Definition of Gross Internal Area (GIA) to be included in the published Charging 
Schedule – officer response given that the authority was proceeding on the basis 
of the Examiner’s report as suggested best practice discussed at the 
Examination – this technical reference could be revised subsequently if 
necessary; and 

d. Exceptional circumstances relief – officer response given that it was not possible 
or appropriate to anticipate all other potential reliefs/circumstances when this 
was adequately included in national guidance and it would therefore be for 
developers to apply for relief.  It was important that all liable developments pay 
the charge to mitigate the impact of the development.  

 
Following further points expressed, the Subcommittee 
 

RECOMMEND TO FULL COUNCIL – That 
 
1) the Arun CIL Charging Schedule, which includes the Examiner’s 

modifications and minor modifications as set out in Background 
Paper 2; and any further non-material changes which may be 
included and agreed with the Group Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning Policy Subcommittee 
and Cabinet Member for Planning, be approved in accordance with 
section 213 of the Planning Act 2008; and 

2) the Arun CIL Charging Schedule, and the Instalments Policy (set out 
within the Charging Schedule) will come into effect in Arun D8istrict  
(outside the South Downs National Park Authority Area) on 1 April 
2020.   

 
25. AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT 2018/19  
 
 In presenting this report, the Planning Policy Team Leader advised that the 
second paragraph of the executive summary stated that the “presumption in favour of 
sustainable development will not apply to planning applications” – this was obviously an 
error and the word not should not have  been included. 
 
 Following questions from Members relating to non-delivery of the housing targets 
and responses from officers, the Subcommittee 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the Authority Monitoring Report 2018/19 be noted. 

 
26. COMPLIMENTS OF THE SEASON  
 
 The Chairman wished Members and officers the compliments of the season. 
 

 
 

Page 8



Subject to approval at the next Planning Policy Sub-Committee meeting 

 
23 

 
Planning Policy Sub-Committee - 17.12.19 

 

 
 

(The meeting concluded at 8.45 pm) 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY SUB-
COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020  

 
PART A :  REPORT 

SUBJECT: Supplementary Planning Documents and Supplementary Planning 
Guidance Revocation 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:    Kevin Owen, Planning Policy Team Leader 
DATE: January 2020   
EXTN:  37853 
PORTFOLIO AREA:  Planning 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Following the adoption of the Open Space, Playing Pitches, Indoor and Built Sports Facilities 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and the Arun Parking Standards SPD on 15 
January 2020, this report advises members on the need to revoke older sets of 
Supplementary Planning Documents and Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
including the Open Space & Recreation Standards SPG and Parking Standards SPG 
adopted in 2000.  
 
Older guidance can be revoked at any time by a local authority by removing them from the 
Council’s web site and deposit points, where they no longer relevant, used, or of material 
weight, provided that steps are taken to inform people living and working in the authority 
area.  
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Planning Policy Sub Committee:- 

1) Agrees that the older Supplementary Planning Documents and Supplementary 
Planning Guidance set out under paragraphs 1.1 and 1.2 of this report be referred to 
Full Council on 18 March 2020 for revocation because they are replaced, are out of 
date and have no material weight. 

 

PROPOSAL(S): 

1.1 The Arun Local Plan 2011-2031 was adopted (July 2018) replacing the older Local 
Plan 2003. As part of updating the policy base supporting the recently adopted Arun 
Local Plan 2018, the Arun Open Space, Playing Pitches, Indoor and Built Sports 
Facilities Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and the Arun Parking Standards 
SPD were adopted by Full Council on 15 January 2020. These recently adopted SPD 
replace the following SPG which subsequently need to be formally revoked and 
removed from the Council’s web site, for the avoidance of doubt: -  
 

 Open Space & Recreation Standards October 2000 SPG; and  

 Parking Standards SPG 2000 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

1.2    In addition, the following older sets of SPD and SPG available on the Council’s web 
site and at inspection points, need to be revoked and removed as they are no longer 
used or have no material weight having been prepared under previous local plan 
policies: - 

 

 Telecoms October 2000 

 Advertisements September 2003 

 Archaeology September 2003 
 
1.3    The adopted Arun Local Plan 2018 together with national policy (National Planning 

Policy Framework 2019) provides up to date policy guidance on these topics to inform 
Development Management decisions and so removal of this older guidance will not 
impact the ability of the Council to determine planning applications. This guidance 
should therefore be revoked in accordance with the recommendation of this report.  

 
1.4   Once revoked the guidance can be removed and notification of this provided on the 

Council’s web site as well as writing to consultees on the planning policy database. 
  

3.  OPTIONS: 

The following options are available: 

 To agree the report to ensure that up to date SPD policy guidance is being used;  

 or not to agree the report which may lead to uncertainty and doubt over the status 
and material weight to be given to SPDs. 
 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council  x 

Relevant District Ward Councillors x  

Other groups/persons (please specify):   x 

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial  x 

Legal x  

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment  x 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

 x 

Sustainability  x 

Asset Management/Property/Land  x 

Technology  x 

Other (please explain)   

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

Page 12



 

The revocation of older policy guidance will ensure that only up to date SPD will be used 
having material weight, in development management decisions. 
 

 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION:  

To ensure that development management decisions and applicants are using up to date 
Supplementary Planning Documents which have material weight being based on the up to 
date planning policies of the Arun Local Plan 2018 and national policy guidance. 

8.   EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE DECISION:  Committee Services to insert  

 

9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: ADC SPD/SPG  Web page:-  
 

https://www.arun.gov.uk/supplementary-planning-documents-spds 

 

 

 

Page 13

https://www.arun.gov.uk/supplementary-planning-documents-spds


This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY SUB-
COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020  

 
PART A :  REPORT 

SUBJECT: Crawley Regulation 19 Publication Local Plan Consultation 
 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:    Kevin Owen, Planning Policy Team Leader 
DATE: 3 February 2020   
EXTN:  37853 
PORTFOLIO AREA:  Planning 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The Crawley Regulation 19 publication Local Plan is being consulted on for soundness 
which covers the 15-year plan period 2019 - 2035. The consultation – closes on 2 March 
2020.This report briefs members on the proposed response. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Planning Policy Sub Committee agrees that:- 

1) In response to the Crawley Local Plan Regulation 19 consultation, Crawley 
Borough Council is urged to clearly set out in updated Statements of Common 
Ground with neighbouring authorities within its Housing Market Area, how its unmet 
need is to be resolved before the plan is submitted for examination; and 

2) In the absence of progress on the LSS3 update, a Statement of Common Ground is 
agreed specifically with Arun District Council to clarify that no assistance will be 
required in order to help with the level of unmet need arising from the Borough. 

 

PROPOSAL(S): 

1.1 The Crawley Reg 19 Publication Local Plan (CLP) is being consulted on for 
soundness. The consultation closes on 2 March 2020. The CLP is housing supply 
‘constrained’ and consequently only sets out provision as follows:- 

 

Plan period 2020-25 2025-30 2030-35 2020-2035 

Housing 
Provision 

+2,500 +2,250 +605 +5,335 

OAN 
Requirement 

   11,280 

Shortfall    -5,945 

 
1.2 The planned housing provision of 11,280 dwellings over 15 years 2020-2035 will 

mean that there is a residual shortfall of -5,945 dwellings compared to the OAN 
requirement based on the Governments’ Standard Housing Methodology (SHM).  

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

 
1.3 The CLP suggests that the residual unmet need should be accommodated in 

neighbouring authorities falling within the North West Sussex Housing Market Area 
(NWSHMA), specifically Horsham and Mid Sussex, through the Duty to Cooperate 
by negotiating provision in respective local plans (e.g. the potential for urban 
extensions around Crawley). It is also acknowledged that the Government’s SHM 
has increased housing figures for these authorities so that this is now also becoming 
more difficult: - 

 
         12.27 “…Currently, the adopted Local Plans for Horsham and Mid Sussex districts 

are anticipated to provide an additional 3,150 dwellings , above their objectively 
assessed housing needs, in order to meet Crawley’s unmet need. However, through 
the Local Plan Reviews this figure is likely to change, particularly as the Standard 
Method increases their own housing requirements to above their current adopted 
Plan commitments (see paragraph 2.28)” 

 
1.4  In context, the issue of an existing level of unmet housing need identified across the 

West Sussex and Greater Brighton Area, adds to the urgency to achieve progress 
on the update to the Local Strategic Statement (i.e. LSS3). This progress is needed 
to inform the ‘Duty to Cooperate’. For example, on 27 January 2020 Elmbridge 
Borough Council (in Surrey) wrote to Arun District Council (ADC) and other 
authorities seeking assistance with unmet housing need (of circa 4,000 dwellings), 
under the ‘Duty to Cooperate’.  

 
1.5  While ADC is remote from and does not have direct cross boundary/strategic issues 

with Crawley Borough (or indeed Elmbridge Borough), until Crawley’s unmet need is 
resolved by neighbouring districts, there may be consequent implications for the 
Arun local planning authority area.     

 
1.6  Currently – there appears to be no up to date evidence on Crawley Borough’s web 

site in support of the CLP with regard to the ‘Duty to Cooperate’ and ‘Statements of 
Common Ground’ or ‘Memoranda of Understanding’, addressing how unmet need is 
to be accommodated through adjacent local plans or via the LSS3 process.  

 
1.7  It is understood that Horsham District’s draft Local Plan (2019-2036) will undergo a 

Regulation 18 consultation 17 February – 30 March. Amongst other options, that 
draft Local Plan will include a potential urban extension of circa 10,000 dwellings on 
a site at Ifield adjacent to Crawley urban area. This would offer a significant potential 
contribution towards Crawley’s unmet housing need. Crawley Borough Council is 
therefore, urged to set out in Statements of Common Ground with neighbouring 
authorities within its Housing Market Area, how its unmet need is to be resolved 
before the plan is submitted for examination. 

 
1.8   It must be stressed that Crawley Borough Council has not asked ADC to assist with 

any unmet housing need given the CLP seeks assistance from Horsham and Mid 
Sussex and other authorities within the NWSHMA. However, given the wider unmet 
need outlined above, and risks should there be insufficient progress on LSS3, ADC 
should seek a specific Statement of Common Ground with Crawley Borough 
consolidating this position. 

Page 16



 

3.  OPTIONS: 

The following options are available to Members: 

 To agree the report to ensure that effective local plans are examined and put in 
place which can clearly address unmet housing need sustainably, close to where it 
arises through appropriate infrastructure under the ‘Duty to Cooperate’;  

 or not to agree the report and the risk that unmet housing need in the wider West 
Sussex and Greater Brighton Area is not resolved which could have potential 
implications for ADC under the ‘Duty to Cooperate’. 

 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council  x 

Relevant District Ward Councillors x  

Other groups/persons (please specify):   x 

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial  x 

Legal  x 

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment  x 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

 x 

Sustainability  x 

Asset Management/Property/Land  x 

Technology  x 

Other (please explain)   

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

There are no immediate implications for Arun District arising from this proposed 
response. 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION:  

To ensure that Arun is fulfilling its obligations under the Duty to Cooperate’. 

8.   EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE DECISION:  Committee Services to insert  

9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

1. Crawley Submission Local Plan - Regulation 19 Consultation – 20 January 2020 to 2 
March 2020: www.crawley.gov.uk/crawley2035 

 

 

Page 17

https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDAxMjAuMTU3ODYxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwOi8vd3d3LmNyYXdsZXkuZ292LnVrL2NyYXdsZXkyMDM1In0.y-sEIk5cvzzCevuDjuKEj02RXm7YC4EU-Bde-8_JLnE/br/74138645219-l


This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY  
SUB COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
PART A :  REPORT 

SUBJECT: Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment  
                     (HELAA 2019 update) 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:     Donna Moles 
DATE:    19 November 2019    
EXTN:     37697  
PORTFOLIO AREA:   Planning Policy 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Council has reviewed and updated its Housing and Economic Land Availability 
Assessment (HELAA) for 2019. This document provides the Council with a database of 
sites within the District. Each site within the database has been assessed to determine 
whether it is deliverable, developable or not currently developable according to the HELAA 
methodology.  It is important to note that whilst the HELAA is a useful resource, it does not 
allocate sites, nor does it grant planning permission. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that: - 
 
The Planning Policy Sub-Committee notes the Housing and Economic Land Availability 
Assessment as part of the evidence base for the Local Plan and any future Development 
Plan Document preparation. 

 

1.     BACKGROUND: 
 
1.1 The Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA) is a key 

component of the evidence base which informed the preparation for the Arun Local 
Plan (ALP) and keeping it up to date will inform future monitoring of potential land 
supply. 
 

1.2 In line with national policy, the Council is required to be proactive and to plan 
positively to ensure that the development needs of the district are met in a 
sustainable way. This requires clear and robust evidence which is updated each 
year through consulting landowners and promoters/developers on the status of their 
sites including a ‘call for sites’ to identify new potential housing and employment 
alnd supply. 
 

1.3 Through maintaining and updating the HELAA, there is an assessment of land 
availability which identifies a future supply of land which is suitable, available and 
achievable for housing and economic development uses over the plan period. The 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 

assessment is an important source of evidence to inform plan and decision making, 
and the identification of a 5-year supply of housing land. It can also inform as well 
as make use of sites in brownfield registers. 
 

1.4 Paragraph 67 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) requires a 
Local Planning Authority to have a clear understanding of the land available in their 
area through the preparation of a strategic housing land availability assessment 
(e.g. HELAA). From this, planning policies should identify a sufficient supply and 
mix of sites, taking into account their availability, suitability and likely economic 
viability.  

 
1.5 The Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), which was published in March 2014 and is 

continually updated, recommends that housing and economic evidence should be 
undertaken as part of the same exercise.  
 

1.6 The NPPF 2019 sets out components of delivering a sufficient supply of homes.  
One of the key components is the strengthening of the definition of ‘deliverable’.  To 
be considered deliverable, sites for housing should be available now, offer a 
suitable location for development now, and be achievable with a realistic prospect 
that housing will be delivered on the site within five years depending on the 
planning status e.g. whether there is detailed planning permission, an outline 
permission for major development or a site is allocated and his supported by clear 
evidence on deliverability (NPPF 2019 Appendix 2 Glossary, page 66).   
 

1.7 National guidance still requires an assessment of site availability, suitability and 
likely economic viability to be considered.  In particular, the Government places 
significant emphasis on securing a 5-year housing land supply (5yr HLS) using this 
more robust evidence approach in order to boost housing delivery.  
 

1.8 The HELAA is updated each year and is an important element of the Council’s 
housing evidence base for the identification of a supply of ‘specific, deliverable’ 
sites for years one to five of the plan period; and ‘specific, developable sites or 
broad locations for growth’, for years 6-10 and where possible, for years 11-15 of 
the plan. This updated HELAA is measured with a base date of 1 April 2018 (see 
paragraph 67 clauses a) and b) respectively, of the NPPF).   
 

1.9 The HELAA tests the delivery of the housing requirement figure for the district by 
informing the preparation of a housing trajectory. This is published with the 
Authorities Monitoring Report (AMR) 2018/19. 

 
Aims of the HELAA 
 

1.10 The overall aim of the HELAA is to: 
 

 Produce a list of sites, cross referenced to maps showing locations of 
specific sites; 

 Provide an assessment of each identified site; 

 Identify the potential type and quantity of development that could be 
delivered on each site; including a reasonable estimate of build out rates; 
and setting out how any barriers to delivery could be overcome. 

Page 20



 

 
1.11 In order to ensure that the HELAA is up to date, officers have reviewed the content 

of the assessment published in 2018 and prepared an updated version for use 
alongside the preparation of relevant planning policy documents. 
 
Methodology 
 

1.12 The HELAA update has been prepared according to a methodology prepared by 
the Council. This methodology follows that prescribed within the PPG and can be 
found within the HELAA Topic Paper which was published in May 2016 on the 
Councils website.   
 
Key Issues to Note 
 

1.13 It is important to note that the HELAA: 
 

 Does not form part of the Development Plan and does not allocate sites for 
development nor preclude those sites not identified from coming forward for 
planning permission in the future 

 Does not provide a relative assessment of sites against each other and does 
not provide any ranking or order of preference. Each site is appraised on its 
own merits. 

 Does not indicate that planning permission will be granted for housing 
development if a site is included in the HELAA. It is not intended to pre-empt 
any plan making or other planning related decisions and does not indicate 
that planning permission should be granted or not granted for housing or any 
other use on any identified site. 

 
1.14 In addition, it should be noted that: 

 

 Inclusion of a site in the HELAA does not mean that it will be allocated for 
development. 

 Planning applications on sites identified within the HELAA will continue to be 
determined on their merits in line with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The HELAA may however form a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

 
Site identification 
 

1.15 The main method of identifying sites is through an annual call for sites exercise 
which provided an opportunity for landowners, site promoters and interested parties 
to submit land for consideration. Another method of identifying sites is through the 
Council’s planning weekly lists. 
 
Site Assessment 
 

1.16 All sites within the HELAA are subject to assessment. The Site assessment draws 
out further information about each site and its potential suitability for 
housing/employment development.  
 

Page 21



 

1.17 Sites are classified in the HELAA as follows: 
 

 Deliverable: to be considered ‘deliverable’ sites for housing should be 
available now, offer a suitable location for development now, and be 
achievable with a realistic prospect that housing will be delivered on the site 
within five years. Sites that are not major development, and sites with 
detailed planning permission, should be considered deliverable until 
permission expires, unless there is clear evidence that homes will not be 
delivered within five years (e.g. they are no longer viable, there is no longer 
a demand for the type of units or sites have long term phasing plans). Sites 
with outline planning permission, permission in principle, allocated in the 
development plan or identified on a brownfield register should only be 
considered deliverable where there is clear evidence that housing 
completions will begin on site within five years. These sites are coloured 
BLUE on the HELAA map. 

 Developable: to be considered ‘developable’ sites should be in a suitable 
location for housing development with a reasonable prospect that they will 
be available and could be viably developed at the point envisaged.  These 
sites are coloured ORANGE on the HELAA map. 

 Not currently developable: if it is not known when a site could be made 
available or viably developed, it is considered ‘Not Currently Developable’ 
and is coloured RED on the HELAA map. 

 
1.18 These classifications reflect the new NPPF (2019) definition of ‘deliverable’. It 

should be noted that the revised definition of ‘deliverable’ sites set out in the NPPF 
2019 has been addressed in this HELAA. The proforma for the HELAA were 
updated in the summer 2019 seeking evidence on site deliverability trajectories 
from promotors and developers to help justify whether a site could categorised as 
deliverable within 5 years.  A developer workshop (25 July 2019) was undertaken in 
order to explain the requirements for realistic evidence. 
 

1.19 Employment Sites are classified in the HELAA as follows: 
 

 Potential Employment Site: to be considered ‘a potential employment site it 
should be available now, offer a suitable location for development, and be 
achievable with a realistic prospect that a business use will be delivered on 
the site within five years. Sites that have planning permission for an 
employment use are considered potential employment sites until permission 
expires or the site is built out with an employment use.  Sites that have been 
identified as a potential employment site but do not currently have 
permission are included if they have been promoted in the last 2 years.   
These sites are coloured YELLOW on the HELAA map. 

 Existing Employment Sites: These are sites that were included from the 
original Economic Land Availability Assessment (ELAA) in 2010, although 
they do not have to be in the HELAA, for information purposes they remain 
in it.  Once a potential employment site is built out it becomes an Existing 
Employment Site.  These sites are coloured BROWN on the HELAA map 

 
 
 

Page 22



 

1.20 It is important to note that the HELAA is an objective assessment of sites, and that 
specific locations cannot be excluded from the assessment, or their status 
amended, due to a lack of public support. Further, with national policy putting 
emphasis on the sequential and exceptions test with regard to flood zones and 
ensuring that the lifetime of the development is considered before sites are 
allocated or planning applications are approved, the requirements of Strategic 
Flood Risk Assessments may have an impact on HELAA housing supply yields and 
future allocations. This point is now emphasised in the HELAA document. 
 

1.21 The result of the site assessments are presented in the main HELAA report 
according to their HELAA status.   

 
New Sites 
 

1.22 16 new sites have been identified for this year’s HELAA. These include sites that 
were submitted to the Council as part of the ‘Call for Sites’ exercise, but also sites 
that the Council has identified. It does not include commitments. Of these new sites, 
5 were identified as being ‘Deliverable’ and 6 were identified as being 
‘Developable’. The remaining 4 sites were identified as being ‘Not Currently 
Developable’ due to suitability, availability and achievability reasons and 1 potential 
employment site. 
 
Key Findings 
 

 The findings of the HELAA assessment are set out in the Section of the 
HELAA report entitled ‘Site Assessment’ (page 40). 

 The HELAA indicates a potential current supply of 59 deliverable sites 
(general) with capacity for 5,467 dwellings across the Local Planning 
Authority Area (LPAA). This is in addition to those sites which have been 
granted planning permission.  

 In addition, it has identified a potential supply of 52 developable sites 
(general) with a yield of 4,855 dwellings (i.e. sites that are considered that 
could come forward over the lifetime of the plan). 

 172 sites are considered not to be developable at the time of publishing the 
HELAA. 

 The deliverable supply from Strategic Allocation sites (not inluded in 
commitments) is 7,010 dwellings. 

 The deliverable supply from Neighbourhood Plan Allocations (not included in 
commitments)  sites is 308 dwellings. 

 
 

2.  PROPOSAL(S): 

To note the Housing and Employment Land Availability Assessment as part of the 
evidence base for the Local Plan and any future Development Plan Document 
preparation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

3.  OPTIONS: 

The following options are available to Members: 

1. To note the HELAA 2019 update Report as evidence to support monitoring of 
housing supply and housing delivery, or 

2. Not to note the HELAA 2019 update. 

4.  CONSULTATION:  

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council  x 

Relevant District Ward Councillors x  

Other groups/persons (please specify)  x 

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial  x 

Legal  x 

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment  x 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder 
Act 

 x 

Sustainability  x 

Asset Management/Property/Land  x 

Technology  x 

Other (please explain)  x 

6.  IMPLICATIONS:   

The HELAA is necessary evidence to support monitoring of housing supply and delivery. 
 

 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION: 

To enable evidence to be updated on potential housing and employment land supply and 
delivery performance in support of the Adopted Local Plan and further plan making to 
ensure that the needs of the community in Arun are met sustainably. 

 

8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

 Arun Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment 2019 (HELAA) available 
(together with the brownfield Register) on the Council’s web site via: 
https://www.arun.gov.uk/helaa-brownfield-land-self-build-registers  

 

 

Page 24

https://www.arun.gov.uk/helaa-brownfield-land-self-build-registers


 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY SUB-
COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020  

 
 

SUBJECT: Brownfield Land Register 2019 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:    Kathryn Banks, Principal Planning Officer 
DATE: January 2020   
EXTN:  x 37579 
PORTFOLIO AREA:  Planning 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The production of a Brownfield Land Register is a requirement under the Town & Country 
Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations, 2017. The Register is to be established 
in two parts (i.e. Part 1 and Part 2 explained below) and is to include all brownfield sites 
that are suitable for residential development. The Register is to be updated at least 
annually.  
 
The Council published its first Brownfield Land Register (Part 1) in December 2017 which 
comprises all brownfield sites that meet the criteria set out in the Brownfield Land 
Regulations. This report provides a 2019 update to the 2018 Register. 
 
The updated Part 1 Register uses data from the 2019 Housing and Economic Land 
Availability Assessment (HELAA) as the starting point.  
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That Planning Policy Sub Committee:- 

1) Notes the 2019 Brownfield Land Register (Part 1). 

2) Agrees that officers work towards the production of the Brownfield Land Register 
(Part 2) including the carrying out of consultation and publicity requirements, as well 
as other procedures in line with the Brownfield Land Register Regulations 2017. 

 

1.        BACKGROUND: 

1.1 The Town & Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations, 2017 
introduced a duty for local planning authorities (LPAs) to prepare, maintain and 
publish a register of brownfield land suitable for residential development within their 
areas. 
 

1.2 Brownfield Land Registers must be kept in two parts. Part 1 establishes a baseline 
stock of ‘brownfield land which meets specific previously developed land and 
delivery criteria (as described below). Part 1 of the register was first published in 
Arun in December 2017 and has been updated annually since. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

 
1.3 Part 2 introduces permission in principle (PiP) as a new route to obtaining planning 

permission for these sites that make it onto Part 1 of the register, in order to help to 
maximise the numbers of new homes built on brownfield land. There is currently no 
requirement to introduce Part 2 according to any target timescale although 
authorities are encouraged to progress Part 2 as soon as possible. 
 

1.4 The broad aim of the Brownfield Land Register is to ensure standardised 
information and data about brownfield land that is suitable and available for 
residential development, is made available nationally and is kept up-to-date. The 
Government envisages that this will improve the quality and consistency of data 
held by councils, provide greater certainty for developers and communities while 
encouraging investment in local areas. 

 
1.5 Annex 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out the 

definition of “previously developed land” and Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) 
confirms that in relation to the production of Brownfield Land Registers, LPA’s must 
use the definition contained within the NPPF 2019. Previously developed land is 
referred to as brownfield land. Sites must meet this defiition to be included within 
the Brownfield Register.  

 
1.6 Brownfield sites included within Part 1 of the Brownfield Land Register are required 

to meet the following criteria: 
 

1. Size:  The site must be 0.25 hectares or larger, or capable of supporting at least 
5 dwellings; 

 

2. Suitable: The site is considered suitable for inclusion on the register if the land 
is allocated in a development plan document (e.g. a Local Plan), has planning 
permission or PiP for residential development. The land may also be included on 
the register if the Local Planning Authority considers it suitable for residential 
development having considered any adverse impact on the natural environment; 
the local built environment; heritage assets in particular; local amenity; and any 
relevant representations received (i.e. from third parties); 

 

3. Available: Sites are considered to be available for development if either all the 
owners of the site, or the developer in control of the land have expressed an 
intention to develop (or sell, in the case of an owners) the site within the 21 days 
before the entry date on the register. In addition, there must be no evidence 
indicating a change to that intention and the Local Planning Authority must be 
satisfied that there are no ownership or other legal matters that might prevent 
residential development taking place, having regard to information publically 
available on the date of assessment and any relevant representations received.  

 
4. Achievable: Based on publically available information and any relevant 

representations received, an achievable site is a site which, in the Local 
Planning Authority’s opinion is likely to take place within 15 years of the entry 
date. 

 
 
 

Page 26



 

1.7 The Brownfield Land Register must be published in the ‘open data’ format 
requested by the Government and reviewed at least annually to ensure that sites 
which no longer meet the criteria for inclusion are removed and new sites are 
assessed and entered onto the register if it is appropriate to do so.  
 

1.8 Part 2 of a brownfield land register is a subset of Part 1. Part 2 will comprise only 
those sites in Part 1 that the local planning authority has decided that the land 
would be suitable for a grant of permission in principle for residential development. 
Part 2 of the brownfield register has not yet been established because this requires 
a significant level of technical work and legal/procedural steps. The Council 
however has started to make progress on this and an update on Part 2 will be 
bought back to committee later in the year. 

 
1.9 The key findings for Part 1 can be summarised as follows:  
 

 There are 33 sites on Part 1 of the Register in total (16 sites have extant planning 
permission) 

 There are 3 new sites added to the Register this year (2 sites have extant planning 
permission) 

 3 sites which were on the 2018 Register have been removed as their extant 
planning permissions have now been implemented.1 site which was on the 2018 
Register but did not have extant planning permission, is still on the 2019 Register 
but it now has planning permission (Regis Centre Site) 

 1 site which was on the 2018 Register with extant planning permission, is still on 
the 2019 Register, however the planning permission has now lapsed (Land South 
of Littlehampton Academy) 

 
1.10 It is important to note that the inclusion of a site on Part 1 of the Register does not 

mean it will automatically be granted planning permission or permission in principle.  
Only when the Council consider it appropriate to enter sites on Part 2 of the 
Register, will it trigger a grant of permission in principle (PiP). If a site is considered 
to be suitable for inclusion in Part 2 there are several steps that the legislation 
requires to be followed including consultation.  
 

1.11 Key components of the evidence base for this work are the local authority’s 
Housing & Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA) together with planning 
application data and the Council’s Local Plan evidence documentation. It is 
therefore, prudent to align the publication of this document with future iterations of 
the Housing & Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA), as far as this is 
practicable.   
 

1.12 The HELAA database has again been used as a starting point to identify sites for 
inclusion in the Brownfield Land Register. The Council has already established a 
process of identifying potential development sites through the HELAA process and 
invited site updates during summer 2019 in order to ensure that the most up to date 
information was available.  
 

1.13 The Council has then considered the sites against the brownfield land criteria to 
consider whether the site meets the criteria set out in the Brownfield Land Register 
Regulations and has included these where they meet the criteria. 

Page 27

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/regulation/4/made


 

 

1.14 In addition to the criteria set out in Regulation 4 which define site suitability,  
Regulation  14A(7)  of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended 
by the Housing and Planning Act 2016) also requires that when preparing registers 
of Land, Local Planning Authorities must also  have regard to:   

 
(a) the development plan (including the adopted Arun Local Plan 2011-2031 and 
‘made’ Neighbourhood Development Plans); 
(b) national policies and advice (e.g. NPPF, Planning Practice Guidance); 
(c) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 

 
1.15 Therefore, when considering sites for inclusion in the Brownfield Land Register the 

local policy context has been applied to the site with respect to the adopted 
development plan. This differs from the HELAA which applies a high-level 
assessment of sites for deliverability and developability but does not assess the 
sites against the adopted development plan. 

PROPOSAL(S): 

2.1 The full schedule of sites included within the table in the main report will be 
published as the Council’s Part 1 Brownfield Land Register 2019 which includes; 
sites which do not have planning permission; sites which already have planning 
permission (including outline) but have not yet been implemented; a justification as 
to any site has been included in the Brownfield Register (Part 1); maps for all sites 
without planning permission (whereas, those sites with planning permission are 
mapped as locations with site information accessed via through the Council’s 
website). These are summarised as follows:  

 

 There are 33 sites on Part 1 of the Register in total (16 sites have extant 
planning permission) 

 There are 4 new sites added to the Register this year (3 sites have extant 
planning permission) 

 4 sites which were on the 2018 Register have been removed as their extant 
planning permissions have now been implemented. 

 
2.2 Part 2 of the brownfield register has not yet been established because this requires 

a significant level of technical work to be completed including legal/procedural 
steps as described in this below. The Council however has started to make 
progress on this and an update on Part 2 will be bought back to committee later in 
the year.  

 
2.3 The Brownfield Land Register will be kept under review together with updates of the  

HELAA for efficiency, as far as this is practicable. 
 

3.  OPTIONS: 

3.1 The following options are available to Members: 

 To note the Brownfield Land Register 2019 as evidence to support monitoring of 
housing supply and housing delivery; or  

 Not to note the Brownfield Land Register 2019. 
 

Page 28



 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council  x 

Relevant District Ward Councillors  x 

Other groups/persons (please specify): Call for sites May 
2018 and HELAA forms update consultation 2019 

x  

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial  x 

Legal  x 

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment  x 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

 x 

Sustainability x  

Asset Management/Property/Land  x 

Technology  x 

Other (please explain)   

6.  IMPLICATIONS: 

The Brownfield Land Register is necessary evidence to support monitoring of housing 
supply and promoting housing delivery through efficient reuse of existing previously 
developed land in accordance with national policy. 
 

 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION: To ensure that the authority maintains a brownfield 
land register that is transparent and accessible to stakeholders and compliant with 
Brownfield Land regulations. 

 

 

9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Brownfield Land Register Final Report and spreadsheets 2019 (together with the HELAA) 
can be accessed via the web link: https://www.arun.gov.uk/helaa-brownfield-land-self-
build-registers 

 

 

 

Page 29

https://www.arun.gov.uk/helaa-brownfield-land-self-build-registers
https://www.arun.gov.uk/helaa-brownfield-land-self-build-registers


This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY  
SUB COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
PART A :  REPORT 

SUBJECT:  
Green Infrastructure Masterplan – Coast to the South Downs 
 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:     Karl Roberts, Director of Place 
DATE:    6 January 2020    
EXTN:     37760  
PORTFOLIO AREA:   Planning 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The Council has commissioned a Masterplan produced by LUC which sets out a vision for 
Green Infrastructure linking the coastline at Bognor Regis with the South Downs National 
Park at Fontwell.  The purpose of the report is to seek the Council’s endorsement of this 
Masterplan to guide future negotiations with landowners and developers and public 
authorities to secure its implementation. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Sub Committee agrees to endorse the report both for the purposes of assisting the 
assessment of any planning applications currently under consideration and for the 
purpose of public consultation. 

 

1.    BACKGROUND: 

In late 2018 the Council commissioned Land Use Consultants (LUC) to produce a Green 
Infrastructure (GI) Masterplan for the area extending from the coast, northwards to the 
South Downs National Park.  GI is the term used to describe the multifunctional network of 
green spaces and ‘urban greening’ features that provide a range of environmental and 
quality of life benefits for local communities. The GI network may include parks and open 
spaces, playing fields, natural and semi-natural habitats, street trees, allotments, private 
gardens, water bodies, and green roofs and walls. 

The aim of the GI framework is to provide an illustrative vision for a connected, 
multifunctional green corridor linking Bognor Regis and the South Downs National Park 
through the parishes of Yapton, Felpham, Eastergate, Aldingbourne, Barnham and 
Bersted; broadly aligned with the North-South route of the Lidsey Rife, taking the 
opportunity to link the proposed strategic development sites at the former LEC airfield 
(employment), Barnham/Eastergate & Westergate (BEW) and Fontwell so as to make use 
of, and link with the GI that could be delivered in these areas.  

This report is intended to guide the provision of GI within the study area. The report has 
included an analysis of existing GI within and around the area and ways in which it should 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 

be reflected and enhanced as an integral part of new development. This analysis is used 
to inform the development of strategic framework proposals covering existing 
developments within the planning pipeline and proposed infrastructure developments, as 
well as identifying potential GI projects at a range of scales. 

The report advises that the objectives of the masterplan are to:  

 undertake a comprehensive review of the landscape context and built environment 
(both existing and planned), identifying constraints and opportunities for the 
implementation of GI;  

 identify options for strategic flood storage and alleviation in the context of planned 
development in the region;  

 identify opportunities for green space enhancements and improved provision of 
areas for informal recreation;  

 identify opportunities to increase ecological connectivity;  

 identify opportunities to enhance accessibility and connectivity and link south to 
north; promoting sustainable modes of transport and ‘designing out’ major barriers 
to access; and  

 communicate how specific GI enhancements may be implemented ‘on the ground’ 
including cost estimates and provide a basic rationale for the GI proposals.  

 
In terms of delivery it is anticipated that the overall vision will be delivered as a series of 
individual projects which are linked.  Some will be delivered by developers as part of their 
development proposals whilst others will be delivered by the Council and its partners as 
and when funding becomes available.  Potential sources of funding include S106 
contributions and Community Infrastructure Levy contributions from both the Council and 
the Parishes and Town Councils.  This work is consistent with the aims and objectives of 
policy GI SP1 of the 2018 Local Plan 
 
A copy of the document is provided as Appendix 1 to this report.  A colour copy has been 
provided in the Members Room for perusal. 
 

2.  PROPOSAL(S): 

A workshop was held with relevant Parish Councils at the outset of the project to identify 
local issues and opportunities and more recently the final draft version of the Masterplan 
has been sent to a number of local councils for comment.  Whilst some comments have 
been received other responses are still awaited and so any late responses will be reported 
to the Committee verbally.  In a similar vein some of the key landowners and developers 
have been invited to contribute to this report and/or invited to respond to this final draft.  
Those comments received to date have been considered in preparing this report.  Any late 
responses received will be reported verbally. 

The Committee is asked to endorse the report both for the purposes of assisting the 
assessment of any planning applications currently under consideration and for the 
purpose of public consultation.  However, it is important to stress that the intention of this 
document is to inform future decision making.  Hence why many of the illustrations should 
be treated as informative rather than suggesting a definitive outcome.  Any responses that 
are received will be reported back to this Committee so that the Committee can decide on 
whether it wishes to recommend to Full Council that the report be adopted as a formal 
Supplementary Planning Document.   

Page 32



 

3.  OPTIONS: 

The range of options available are extensive but the main ones are to seek amendments 
at this stage, reject the recommendation or support the recommendation. 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council x  

Relevant District Ward Councillors x  

Other groups/persons (please specify) – landowners & 
developers 

x  

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial x  

Legal x  

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment x  

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

x  

Sustainability x  

Asset Management/Property/Land x  

Technology  x 

Other (please explain)   

6.  IMPLICATIONS:  

Whilst the publication of the report for public consultation has no direct financial 
implications, the potential adoption of the report as SPD will have indirect implications in 
securing the delivery of the vision.  In terms of legal implications that requires the correct 
procedures to be followed for a SPD.  In terms of equalities and community safety there 
are not considered to be any adverse implications arising from the recommendation.  In 
respect of sustainability the overall vision will deliver many economic, social and 
environmental benefits.  To achieve the delivery of the vision it may be necessary to 
involve Council assets and for the Council to adopt new assets. 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION:   

The intention of the GI report is to illustrate a strategic framework to support the 
sustainable growth of the area by facilitating the incorporation and consideration of GI 
during development.  This report to the Committee seeks the Committee’s endorsement of 
the GI report for both the purpose of assisting the assessment of any planning applications 
currently under consideration and for public consultation. 

9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Appendix 1 

 

Page 33

https://www.arun.gov.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n14967.pdf&ver=15366


This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF PLANNING POLICY  
SUB COMMITTEE ON 25 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
 

SUBJECT:   
High Level Development Principles for the Barnham / Eastergate / Westergate (BEW) 
Strategic Planning Allocation 
 

 

REPORT AUTHOR:     Karl Roberts, Director of Place 
DATE:    15 January 2020    
EXTN:     37760  
PORTFOLIO AREA:   Planning 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

This report seeks the endorsement of the Council to a series of high-level development 
principles to guide the form of the development at BEW.   

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

The Sub Committee recommends to Full Council that: 

The High-Level Development Principles appended to the report to the Sub Committee be 
endorsed to guide the form of the development at the Barnham / Eastergate / Westergate 
(BEW) Strategic Planning Allocation. 

 

1.    BACKGROUND: 

The potential form of the development at the Strategic Local Plan allocation for 
Barnham/Eastergate/Westergate (BEW) is largely governed in policy terms by policies H 
SP2 and H SP2c of the Local Plan.  However, there are many other generic or topic-based 
policies in both the Local Plan and the two Neighbourhood Plans which could also be 
regarded as relevant to this particular strategic allocation.  Therefore, to help shape future 
discussions on how to achieve a successful form of development for this strategic 
allocation, a series of high-level development principles (see Appendix 1) have been 
developed that apply these policy objectives to the characteristics of this allocation having 
regard to its surroundings. 

2.  PROPOSAL(S): 

As the name suggests these principles are intended to be high level and not include 
excessive amounts of detail.  As they have evolved the Council has invited the relevant 
Parish Councils, developers/site promoters for the strategic allocation and both internal 
and external consultees to comment on the wording of the Principles.  A number of 
revisions have been made and a revised set of Principles issued for comment.  The 
principles have also been presented at the BEW Advisory Group in November 2019. 

The Sub Committee is invited to recommend to Full Council that these High-Level 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



 

Principles be supported and used to shape future discussions on how to achieve a 
successful form of development for the BEW strategic allocation 

3.  OPTIONS: 

The Sub Committee could endorse the principles as recommended or reject them or seek 
to amend them. 

4.  CONSULTATION: 

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO 

Relevant Town/Parish Council x  

Relevant District Ward Councillors x  

Other groups/persons (please specify) - Site Promoters & 
Developers 

x  

5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES: 
(Explain in more detail at 6 below) 

YES NO 

Financial  x 

Legal x  

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment x  

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act 

x  

Sustainability x  

Asset Management/Property/Land x  

Technology  x 

Other (please explain) x  

6.  IMPLICATIONS:  

The Principles will be a material consideration in the assessment and determination of any 
application.  However, they do not have the same status as policies in the adopted 
Development Plans.  Some of the individual Principles impact upon the matters listed 
above, but in a manner which is intended to result in a positive outcome.  It is not possible 
to indicate, at this time, the exact form of that impact.  For example, in terms of the issue 
of Equalities it is possible to say that the Principles will potentially impact upon those of 
‘protected characteristics’, but the exact form of that is not yet known, but the intention of 
the Principles is to have a positive impact, such as helping to address loneliness which 
could be regarded as impacting upon older persons more than other population groups. 

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION:   

The principles are intended to guide the form of the development at the Barnham / 
Eastergate / Westergate (BEW) Strategic Planning Allocation to assist in securing 
successful place making. 

9.  BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Appendix A: High Level Principles for the Barnham / Eastergate / Westergate (BEW) 
Strategic Planning Allocation. 

Page 36



 

 

Page 37



 

Appendix A 
 

High Level Development Principles 

Access and Movement 

SDP 1 Access and Strategic Movement - The new community at BEW will have a permeable 

layout that integrates and maximises and prioritises sustainable patterns of movement.  The 

development will also make provision for parking and access to and from the Barnham Railway 

Station as well as seeking to improve local bus services. Key routes through the development will 

be wide enough to accommodate buses in addition to parked vehicles. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; T SP1; T DM1; T DM2; BENP GA1; BENP GA2; BENP GA5; ANP 

GA1 

SDP 2 A29 and wider road network- In accordance with Local Plan policy, the development of 

BEW will include the provision of a realigned A29 to provide both a bridge crossing of the railway 

and a core route through the development.  The scale of the development will also require the 

provision of East-West links joining existing communities and the new community to both the 

North and South of the railway line as well as the mitigation of unacceptable impacts on the 

wider road network  

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; T SP1; T SP3; INF SP1 

SDP 3 Strategic Green Connections - A new strategic cycleway will pass through the strategic 

allocation linking the Coast with the Downs.  The former canal route will also be considered as a 

potential cycleway to provide a route to the new secondary school. 

Policy Reference:  SD SP1a; C SP1; GI SP1; H SP2; H SP2c; HWB SP1; T SP1; T DM1; HER DM5; 

BENP ES9; BENP GA1; ANP EH2 

SDP 4 Pedestrian and Cycle Links – In addition to the strategic green connections, a 

comprehensive local network of Green Infrastructure including secondary pedestrian and cycle 

links will be provided throughout the allocation linking the area to the wider community. These 

will provide attractive, convenient and safe routes to facilitate sustainable movement, stitching 

together land uses while also improving health and well-being. 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; H SP2c; D DM1; HWB SP1; T SP1; HER DM5; BENP GA1; BENP 

GA2; ANP GA2 

Built Form 

SDP 5 Centres and Walkable Neighbourhoods - The Masterplan should provide for at least two 

new neighbourhood centres south of Barnham Road, connected to each other. These centres 

will be conveniently located to the north and south of the railway line, so people can walk to 

local facilities and services within 5 to 10 minutes of their home, as well as being accessible by 

cycle, public transport and if necessary, by car. 

Policy Reference:  SD SP1a; H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; HWB SP1; T SP1; T DM1; BENP GA2 

Page 38



 

SDP 6 Housing Mix, Density and Capacity - The allocation will provide a full range of housing 

opportunities, with different densities, heights and typologies across the new community 

creating distinctive and legible character areas that maximise the potential for sustainable design 

and non-car-based travel.   Opportunities should be provided for self and custom build homes 

and community led housing such as Community Land Trusts. 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; H DM1; AH SP2; D SP1; D DM1; D DM2; BENP CLW1; ANP H2; 

ANP H3 

SDP 7 Place-Making Objectives - The allocation will exemplify high standards of urban, 

landscape and architectural design to create a distinctive and attractive place with legible 

character areas that maximise the potential for sustainable design and non-car-based travel.    

There should be high quality public realm and public art resulting overall in a place where people 

will want to live, work and visit for generations to come. The layout should seek to avoid the 

physical coalescence of the allocation with the existing communities unless there is a sound 

place making objective to do so such as where part of the allocation may reasonably be regarded 

as an urban extension.  To reinforce the sense of creating a new community any development 

which is physically separate from the existing communities should have a cohesive modern 

contemporary design for the whole community. 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; HWB SP1; OSR SP1; T DM1; QE SP1; QE 

DM1; QE DM2; QE DM3; INF SP1; BENP ES3; BENP ES4; BENP CLW4; ANP GA3’ ANP LC4 

SDP 8 Allocation Design Guidelines - The place-making objectives will be supported by the Arun 

Design Guide. Appropriate documentation should be submitted in support of any Planning 

Application, to demonstrate how regard has been had to the Arun Design Guide and these High-

Level Development Principles.  The expectation will be that individual design codes will be 

submitted for each of the areas listed in the diagram below and conform to an agreed 

masterplan for the whole allocation.  Attention should be paid to minimising light pollution. 

Policy Reference:  SD SP1a; H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; QE SP1; QE DM2; BENP ES5; BENP ES6; 

BENP ES8; BENP H4; BENP H5; BENP H6; ANP H1; ANP H8; ANP H9; ANP EH10 

SDP 9 Built for Life - Design proposals for the allocation will be assessed against the place-

making objectives set out elsewhere in this document and Building for Life 12.  The outcome 

should be a place that addresses positively the physical and mental health of those that live, 

work and play within its boundary.  In particular there is an expectation that the development 

should meet the needs of all (equality) and that special attention is given to combating 

loneliness. 

Policy Reference: H DM1; D SP1; D DM1; D DM2; HWB SP1; BENP H4; ANP H2 

SDP 10 Heritage – The importance of preserving the setting of Eastergate Parish Church and its 

farmstead will be incorporated into the masterplan for the allocation.  The impact of the 

proposals upon the War memorial and the Conservation Areas should also be considered 

carefully. 

Page 39



 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; HER SP1; HER DM1; HER DM2; HER DM6; BENP ES7; ANP EH8; ANP 

EH9 

SDP11 Biodiversity – The development shall take every opportunity to deliver a net biodiversity 

gain across the allocation as a whole and within each phase. 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; ENV SP1; ENV DM1; ENV DM3; ENV DM4; ENV DM5; ANP EH2 

Community and Employment 

SDP 12 Integration with Established Communities - The development will seek to maximise 

integration with the existing communities of Westergate, Eastergate and Barnham and the 

established facilities and services of these communities and the wider District. The new 

community will complement and add to these facilities, providing existing and new residents 

with access to a wider range of housing, employment, education, health, social, recreation and 

leisure opportunities and contribute to a vision for how the centre of Barnham can be enhanced. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; HWB SP1; OSR SP1; QE SP1; 

SDP 13 Education - The allocation will facilitate the provision of a new Secondary School at Ford, 

at least two Primary Schools and nursery provision where a need is identified by West Sussex 

County Council. These new facilities will be a significant focus for community life, playing a key 

role in fostering a new community through the development and education of younger people 

and should be constructed so as to provide a climate-smart benchmark through use of 

technology, renewable energy and sustainable materials. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; INF SP1; INF SP2; BENP CLW8; ANP LC8 

SDP 14 Mixed and Balanced Community - The allocation will provide a range of housing types to 

meet current and anticipated future local housing need, including extra care and elderly persons’ 

housing. The development will provide 30% of all new homes as affordable homes, of which 75% 

will be social or affordable rented and 25% will be intermediate, subject to viability. 

Policy Reference: H DM1; AH SP2; H DM2; D DM2; BENP CLW1; BENP H3; ANP H2; ANP H4; ANP 

LC1 

SDP 15 Integrating Employment Opportunities - The allocation will identify space for 

employment land within the masterplan, which would be suitable for a range of B-Class uses 

(offices, research and development, and/or industry). 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; EMP SP1; SKILLS SP1; H SP2c; BENP EE3; ANP EE3; ANP EE9 

Landscape and Infrastructure 

SDP 16 Landscape and green/blue infrastructure - The development of the allocation will 

preserve and enhance the established framework of watercourses, woodlands, trees and 

hedgerows as part of the commitment to creating a high quality and distinctive place.  Together 

with the Lidsey Rife and other meandering water courses these will play a major role in defining 

the character of the new community and frame its development. 

Page 40



 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; 

SDP 17 A rich variety of open spaces - The allocation will provide a rich variety of attractive open 

spaces including a park following the Lidsey Rife or will contribute to the enhancement of 

existing spaces. These will support wider bio-diversity objectives and promote adaption to 

climate change, pest and disease resilience, as well as meeting community needs for recreation 

and supporting health and well-being. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; D DM1; 

SDP 18 Treescape - The trees and hedgerows within the allocation, are an irreplaceable habitat, 

which should be retained and protected through a sensitive design approach. Any trees and 

hedgerows of significance will be incorporated into the framework of green spaces and 

protected by a buffer zone. Substantial additional tree planting including native and disease-free 

specimens will be expected in part to mitigate the ‘heat island’ effect of climate change and 

absorb excessive groundwater. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; D SP1; D DM1; ENV DM4; BENP ES10; ANP EH6 

SDP 19 Sports Facilities – The allocation shall provide sports facilities to serve the new 

community which will also benefit existing residents and should complement existing and 

planned provision. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; HWB SP1; OSR DM1; INF SP1; BENP CLW3 

SDP 20 Topography - The development will work with the allocation’s undulating topography to 

respect and build on the existing sense of place, as well as reducing the scale of earthworks and 

levelling required. 

Policy Reference: SD SP1a; H SP2; D SP1; D DM1; 

SDP 21 Surface Water Management – The development will deliver sustainable solutions for 

managing surface water which are focused on measures which are visible, attractive and 

contribute to the other strategic placemaking principles including bio-diversity and the provision 

of open space which is useable throughout the year.   

Where possible, opportunities to deliver access, landscape and biodiversity improvements to the 

Lidsey Rife and other watercourses through partnership working will be explored, together with 

opportunities to support strategic flood defences beyond the boundaries of the allocation which 

may contribute to wider flood risk management objectives.  

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; D SP1; W SP1; W DM2; W DM3; BENP ES1; BENP ES2; BENP H7; 

ANP EH4; ANP EH5 

SDP 22 Infrastructure - The development will respond positively to any significant infrastructure 

deficits and make appropriate contributions to any improvements considered necessary. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; H SP2c; W DM1; INF SP1; BENP CLW2; ANP EE8; ANP LC2; ANP LC3 

Sustainability 

Page 41



 

SDP 23 Climate Resilient Development - Development within the allocation will seek to make 

best possible use of passive design approaches to optimise the internal comfort of buildings. 

Coupled with extensive green infrastructure, these will in turn help to manage external comfort 

by managing air flows, temperature and shade. 

Policy Reference: D SP1; ECC SP1; ECC SP2; W DM2; BENP ES11 

SDP 24 Low Carbon Energy - Development at the allocation will promote low carbon energy 

technologies and embrace the transition to electric vehicles.  Opportunities to incorporate 

renewable energy features on all buildings should be taken. 

Policy Reference: D SP1; ECC SP2; ECC DM1; BENP ES13; ANP EH7 

SDP 25 Integrated Water Management - Responding to the challenge of water stress across the 

South East, the allocation will identify opportunities to reduce potable water demand to below 

the 110 litres per day required by Part G of the Building Regulations. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; D SP1; W SP1; W DM1; 

SDP 26 Construction and Material Use - The development will take into consideration the whole 

life cost and embodied carbon of all building materials to encourage innovative and sustainable 

use of natural resources. 

Policy Reference: D SP1; WM DM1; 

SDP 27 Waste – The development shall ensure that adequate provision is made for the storage 
and collection of green, recyclable, food and residual waste in a manner which is integral to the 
overall design philosophy and encourages reduction, reuse and recycling. 
 
Policy Reference: D SP1; WM DM1; INF SP1 

SDP28 – Pollution - Ensure the layout and positioning of uses in the south eastern corner 

recognises Lidsey treatment works by responding to the outcomes of odour and noise 

assessments 

Policy Reference: QE SP1; QE DM1 and QE DM3 

SDP 28 Stewardship –Delivering a successful new community requires a clear understanding of 

how assets generated by the development process will be managed in perpetuity. The proposals 

must demonstrate how such management will be undertaken on behalf of the community. 

Policy Reference: 

Technology 

SDP 29 Broadband – The allocation will ensure that all occupied buildings have access to the 

highest level of broadband currently available and where appropriate make provision for future 

changes in technology, subject to viability. 

Policy Reference: H SP2; INF SP1 

Page 42



 

Areas for Design Codes (see SDP8) 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Revocation of older Supplementary Planning Documents and Supplementary Planning Guidance
	6 Crawley Regulation 19 Publication Local Plan Consultation
	7 Housing Employment Land Availability Assessment (HELAA 2018/19
	8 Brownfield Land Register 2019
	9 Green Infrastructure Masterplan - Coast to the South Downs
	10 High Level Development Principles for the Barnham / Eastergate / Westergate (BEW) Strategic Planning Allocation

